## German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

## Make music during the SARS-CoV-2 pandemic

# Recommendations of the German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians Medicine (DGfMM) to protect against infection when playing music

(As of May 14, 2020)

### Authors

Carl Firle  $_1$  , Hans-Christian Jabusch  $_2$  , Anke Grell  $_3$  , Isabel Fernholz  $_{4.5}$  , Alexander Schmidt  $_{4.5}$  Anke Steinmetz  $_6$ 

1 Sankt Gertrauden Hospital, Internal Medicine Department, Berlin

2 Institute for Musicians Medicine, University of Music Dresden Carl Maria von Weber Dresden

3 Practice for child and adolescent psychiatry / musicians medicine, Hamburg

4 Berlin Center for Musicians Medicine, Charité - Universitätsmedizin Berlin

5 Kurt Singer Institute for Music Physiology and Musicians Health, University of Music Hanns Eisler and

University of Art in Berlin

6 Institute for Musician Medicine Rhein-Main, Loreley Clinics St. Goar-Oberwesel

Target groups:

- Instrumental / vocal pedagogues
- Music students
- Orchestra musicians
- Singers
- · Instrumentalists and singers in the amateur / lay area

1/17

### Page 2

## German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

### Preliminary note:

- There is currently no evidence-based information on the transmission of SARS-CoV-2 while making music
- These recommendations are based on previous knowledge of SARS-CoV-2 and
  - scientific research in the field of music (regular updates sought)

The recommendations described here summarize the scientific findings to date together and are not to be understood as binding instructions. They serve the Risk assessment of infection with SARS-CoV-2 while making music. The apply nationwide or in the federal states regulations that the musicians / institutions with ministries, Coordinate authorities and company doctors and implement them for their area.

### Goal:

.

· Assessment of the risk of infection with SARS-CoV-2 when playing instruments and singing

assessment	of	Risk	c potential	different	Instrument groups /	
Vocal formations		in	different	musical	Occupations	and
Teaching situations						

## German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

## Table of Contents

1. Information on SARS-CoV-2 and Covid-19 4
Epidemiology and type of infection4
Clinical complaints
Measures to reduce spread
2.General recommendations
Recommendations for musicians
3. Recommendations for special groups of instruments
Wind instruments
String instruments, keyboard instruments, percussion instruments, plucked instruments
4. Recommendations for teaching9
5. Recommendations for orchestras and ensembles
6.Vocals
7. Disinfection measures on the instrument
8.Final statement 12
9. Further links
<u>10.Literature</u>

## German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

## 1. Information on SARS-CoV-2 and Covid-19

### Epidemiology and type of infection

The coronavirus SARS-Cov-2, which was first detected in Wuhan in December 2019, is the causative agent Covid-19 disease (Corona Virus Disease 2019) led to a worldwide pandemic.

SARS-Cov-2 is mainly transmitted by droplet infection and partly by Contact infection 1. However, the knowledge about the transmission paths is still incomplete. A Aerosol spreading is possible because in experimental situations SARS-Cov-2 is found in aerosols had it proven 2. With SARS-Cov-2, there is a high risk of infection 3, especially when coughing, sneezing and speaking. When transferring, it is important to use a droplet with a Size of > 5  $\mu$ m, for example when coughing, sneezing and wet pronunciation, and those with a size of <5 $\mu$ m, which, for example, is exhaled as aerosol into the room air differentiate. The larger droplets are proven to be infectious, including infectivity of human aerosol has been scientifically proven in studies 4. In studies, 5.6 can be shown that the virus was still detectable in the air after 3 or 16 hours. In front infection from larger droplets that fall to the ground after 1.5 to 2 m protects the Compliance with an appropriate distance rule, but not before a potential infection by Aerosols.

From infection to the first signs of infection (incubation period) pass in the Average five days, with a range between two and 14 days. Consecutive numbers The WHO and the. are among others for proven infections, healed and deceased Robert Koch Institute (RKI) publishes 7.8 . Around 80% of the sufferers have a mild course to assume that 14% of the patients suffer from a severe course and 5% from a critical one Course with intensive medical care. Lethality (probability of SARS-Cov-2 to die after infection) is estimated to be 1-3%, with increasing age significantly There is an increased risk of dying from Covid-19 9 . Furthermore, significant regional ones Observe differences in lethality <u>1.8</u>. Have an increased risk of serious illnesses People with diseases of the cardiovascular system, chronic pulmonary and Liver disease, diabetes mellitus, and people with certain cancers and a weakened immune system 10 . Smokers and very obese people also have a higher one Risk of a severe course 11 .

### Clinical complaints

The symptoms of Covid-19 can be extremely diverse and the disease can be recognized

Making music during the SARS-CoV-2 pandemic Recommendations of the German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Medicin... make difficult. It can be assumed that the majority of those infected are asymptomatic or only mild cold symptoms such as fatigue, cough, sore throat and Has a headache. Most Covid 19 sufferers also have a fever (up to 80%), shortness of breath, muscle and joint pain, nausea and vomiting, and diarrhea

4/17

### Page 5

## German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

added 12. Also neurological symptoms such as temporary disorders of the sense of taste and smell

are reported  $_{13}$ . Some of them develop severe clinical complaints during the course pronounced shortness of breath and pneumonia  $_{14}$ .

### Measures to reduce spread

The measures to reduce the spread of SARS-Cov-2 are on the website of the RKI described in detail 15 . The majority of the measures are based on the principle containment, whereby vulnerable groups of people are particularly protected and social Contacts are kept to a minimum 16.17

## 2. General recommendations

The recommendations listed below are mainly based on the recommendations of the Robert Koch Institute and try to transfer this to the situation of musicians or adapt 18.

According to the current state of knowledge, the following two aspects result in the greatest Difficulties in implementing sustainable infection protection when making music:

- Infectivity of the infected even before the onset of symptoms or at asymptomatic course
- Unclear data on the occurrence and extent of infectious aerosols in

Wind instrument playing and singing as well as with intensified breathing as a result physiological activation through any instrumental play

### Recommendations for musicians

General hygiene measures:

The general hygiene measures during the corona pandemic are also in place Make music and teach.

Since an absolute risk exclusion cannot be guaranteed at the moment, everyone involved should be able to decide independently and without obligation to justify (e.g. risk groups) whether and to what extent they are willing to expose themselves to possible exposure situations. A Exemption from employees who belong to a high-risk group can include: B. be made possible by the employer within the framework of occupational health care. Making music during the SARS-CoV-2 pandemic Recommendations of the German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Medicin...

Oral Nose Protection (MNS)

- The mouth guard should be worn properly over the mouth and nose. The industrially manufactured mouth guard has a deformable metal plate, which on
- The bridge of the nose should be adjusted by pressing lightly. When removing the mask

care must be taken not to touch the possibly contaminated front 19. The

5/17

### Page 6

## German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

self-made or industrial oral nose protection serves to reduce the Droplet transmission by the person carrying it and should be in the contact situation of everyone Involved.
cough label Coughing or sneezing should be done in the crook of the arm or in a paper handkerchief that is in the

- Connection must be disposed of in a closed container.
- · Wash hands with soap

In addition to hand disinfection, thorough hand washing is a possibility of

- Avoiding contact infection with SARS-Cov-2 dar 20 . This should be under the fluent
- Water and take at least 20 to 30 seconds. The use of liquid soap

is recommended. Drying should be with a disposable towel or personal Towel.

Hand disinfection

SARS Cov-2 pathogens can be removed from the hands using alcoholic disinfectants Reduce. In the event of repeated disinfections, it should be based on moisturizing disinfectants be taken to avoid consequential dermatological damage. SARS-Cov-2 is also on

- "Limited virucidal" hand disinfectant containing sensitive 21.
- Maintain a minimum distance of 1.5 to 2 meters in situations that are not with a

are associated with an increased probability of transmission (e.g. as a result of deep breathing

- and / or increased droplet formation and / or their further spreading)
- The distance control is the most effective way to contain a transmission 22,23 .
- Avoid sharing utensils and instruments
  - If possible, do not share the same instrument. Wind instruments
  - should never be shared. Using the same instrument
  - especially from wind instruments, transmission of SARS-Cov-2 by droplets
  - and contact infection cause 24.
- Avoiding large groups
- Strict avoidance of contact in the presence of a cold
- Regular intensive ventilation (currently applicable regulations and recommendations for operation
  - of ventilation and air conditioning systems can be found under 25)
- · Room size as large as possible, based on the number of people and

Distance bids

## 3. Recommendations for special groups of instruments

Wind instruments

Making music during the SARS-CoV-2 pandemic Recommendations of the German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Medicin...

From instrumental considerations it is very likely that fine droplets, which are contained in the exhaled air blown into the instrument by the sounding Vibrations of the reeds or lips (flute, brass instruments) in aerosols ( $<5 \mu m$ ) To be "swirled". Aerosol formation and spreading appears to exist in several Wind instruments are made differently, so possibly different

6/17

### Page 7

## German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

Protective measures for infection protection must be taken. It is also believed that due to deeper inhalation when playing wind instruments, potentially infectious aerosols in can reach deeper lung sections. Publications on systematic scientific studies on production and So far there are no spreading of droplets and aerosols when playing wind instruments. To preliminary studies appear to be the speeds and ranges of air flows, which leave the wind instrument to be significantly below those, for example when sneezing or cough are observed (see also: video contribution by Prof. Matthias Bertsch 26, Examination of air flows with the Bamberg Symphony Orchestra by Prof. Claudia Spahn and Prof. Bernhard Richter 27, air flow measurement by Prof. Christian Kähler and Dr. Rainer Hain 28). The Avoiding potential droplet infections from playing the wind instruments should accordingly can be achieved by distances of 1.5 to 2 m. The investigations of Spahn and Richter with the Bamberg Symphony Orchestra27 were based on the spread of one Theater fog in front of the respective wind instrument, those of Kähler and Hai n 28 were based on a visualization of the exhaled air and the saliva particles when playing the wind instrument Laser light t 28. Visualizing the air movement revealed that the range of the air flows and Particles when playing the investigated brass instruments was less than 0.5 m and when playing Woodwind instruments (except for the flute) were around 1 m. Only when playing the flute could apparently larger ranges are observed (data in m are missing here)28 Size studies however, the authors of both studies did not report the aerosol particles. Of the The size of the aerosol particles depends on how long they float in the air and, if necessary, through Air flow to be spread. It also matters how long virus-containing Aerosols remain infectious. Studies carried out under laboratory conditions could over 3 Detect hours 29 and even 16 hours of infectious SARS-CoV-2 viruses6. To what extent these studies are transferable to everyday or music situations is currently unclear. Becomes scientific both the importance of aerosol transmission and the resulting ones Security measures discussed intensively. Setti et al. note in this connection that the 2 m distance rule may not be sufficient in the case of aerosol transmission5. However, as long as it is not clear to what extent it is used for all wind instruments Aerosol formation is coming and what ranges can be achieved here has to be done by Wind instrument play from an increased risk of infection compared to the play of others Instruments are run out. Additional protective measures must be used, such as eg compliance with larger minimum distances (according to preliminary investigations at least 2 30 meters, possibly more when playing the flute and piccolo), the covering of the horns with textile covers and intensified ventilation concepts with shorter lessons and longer ventilation phases in between. Here are detailed investigations urgently necessary in order to be able to determine the measures in an instrument-specific manner.

## German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

Instrument-specific features:

• Woodwind instruments:

The clarinet, oboe and bassoon were able to produce deep and long-lasting tones Flow movements in the range of 1 m can be measured. It may be because of the smaller ones Blow-out openings and the lower flow resistance due to the straight design larger flow movements are generated than with brass instruments <u>n 28</u>. With the flute is an important aspect that a significant part of the blowing air is not blown into the instrument (and leaves it at the end), but at the blowing edge straight into the room accelerated and redistributed. As a result, the risk of infection is likely to be significantly higher than other wood and brass instruments.

To limit flow movements and saliva emissions, tightly woven textile fabrics can be used or paper towels in front of the instrument opening (cup or funnel) or, for example, a Pop protection or similar in the direction of blowing before the flute. So the spread of Droplets are reduced  $n_{28}$ .

#### • Brass instruments:

Even with brass instruments, covering the cup / funnel with one can be tight woven thin textile may curb droplet flight 31. A special feature of the Brass instruments cool the air blown into the instrument more strongly due to the design forms a condensate which, like the valve moisture, is to be regarded as potentially infectious. Air turbulence at the valves also causes further settling (Sedimentation) of aerosol particles. The air from a brass instrument is thereby Return to the room drier and more saturated than the original breathing air. Possibly is the condensate remaining in the instrument is significantly more infectious, which is why safe disposal and adequate hygiene in handling this is absolutely necessary (e.g. disposal in closed containers). It was found in flow experiments that the in The smaller the horn, the greater the movement of the air in front of the instruments of the instrument, the lower the tone and the more shocking the sequence of tones is tas.

#### String instruments, keyboard instruments, percussion instruments, plucked instruments

The playing of string, keyboard, percussion or plucked instruments is usually not with one increased risk of infection associated with SARS-CoV-2. This applies if the instruments are

Making music during the SARS-CoV-2 pandemic Recommendations of the German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Medicin... only be played by one person and the general recommendations are followed.

Of four-handed or multi-handed piano playing is due to the inadequate Keeping distance is discouraged. Playing the piano on multiple instruments can be done if one The distance of the musicians from 1.5 to 2 meters is considered harmless. A mouth guard is recommended.

8/17

### Page 9

## German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

With striking mechanism, there should not be a shared use of instrument parts (mallets or similar) come.

### 4. Recommendations for teaching

In principle, the above recommendations for protection against infection apply. On the instrument-specific Recommendations were made in Chapter <u>3</u>. Whenever possible, everyone should be one Wear mouth protection. The number of people in the room should be kept to a minimum be limited and the minimum distance of 1.5 to 2 meters should be observed. We further recommend:

· Wash hands before class (if necessary, additional hand disinfection, eg if from

Teacher instruments must be tuned). To do this, provide a

Washing facilities and a disinfectant.

- Avoiding face-to-face contact, for example by setting up at a 90  $^\circ$  angle.
- · Possibly. Use of plexiglass walls between teacher and learner to avoid

a droplet infection.

- Limitation of contact times to a minimum.
- · Cleaning the touched instrument surfaces / buttons after each lesson.
- · Lessons on your own instrument and with your own accessories (also no audition of the

Teacher on the instruments of the students). If this is not possible (e.g.

- Harp, double bass), so after cleaning (if possible), the transfer
- after 24h at the earliest (wind instruments 72h, see also chapter 7).
- Professional cleaning and disinfection of the classroom after everyone

#### Lesson.

- Regular intensive ventilation after each lesson (currently applicable regulations
- and recommendations for the operation of ventilation and air conditioning systems can be found under 24 ). • For risk individuals with pre-existing conditions or advanced age (see Chapter 1) is
- to advise a clarification of the procedure with the family doctor / company doctor.
- · Covid-19 works in people aged 70 and over and those with severe

Previous illnesses (see also Chapter 1 ) are accompanied by a significantly increased mortality rate.

They should therefore refrain from teaching in the same room with other people or to take lessons.

• Strict avoidance of physical closeness is given for forms of teaching such as online

Lessons or room-to-room teaching using appropriate technical Solutions.

Making music during the SARS-CoV-2 pandemic Recommendations of the German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Medicin...

## 5. Recommendations for orchestras and ensembles

The resumption of the operation of opera and concert orchestras while respecting the Protection against infection for the musicians is a great one for those responsible in the cultural field Challenge.

### Page 10

# German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

General protective measures such as observing symptoms, taking into account the Belonging to a risk group, compliance with hygiene and distance rules, wearing an MNS outside the concert hall, cleaning the work and functional rooms as well as consistent Implementation of a ventilation concept must be observed to prevent infection. The current Approved group size must be coordinated with the authorities and health authorities.

The orchestral arrangement that is common in normal operation is not possible due to the risk of infection. In order to develop practicable solution models, one has to consider the different ones Risk potential of the instruments usually required in orchestral operations is necessary (see Explanations in Chapter 3). Various suggestions (which in relation to the distance rules of the Wood and brass instruments differ considerably in some cases) <u>t 31</u>, 32, 33 have already been developed .

A final risk assessment, especially of the wind instrument playing on the basis scientifically published data, however, is - despite the current Untersuchunge <u>n 27, 28</u>- to the current one Time not yet possible. Based on the current scientific knowledge on Aerosol problems are the increasingly recommended distance rule of 1.5 to 2 m for wind players consider, since only the larger droplets fall to the ground after 1.5 to 2 m and the aerosols in Room air remain.

It is therefore advisable to use additional protective measures to minimize risk. As before executed larger seat spacing, spatially offset Aufstellunge could <u>n 28</u> and textile coverings in front of the instrument openings provide additional protection.

Depending on the specific working conditions, the orchestras are also recommended a hygiene and protection concept, rules of conduct and a concept for the running of samples and Concerts based on the SARS-CoV-2 occupational safety status of the Federal Ministry of Labor and To create social issues <sup>34</sup> and in coordination with the company doctors and health authorities to implement.

In principle, these recommendations also apply to the lay and amateur sectors. It's closed consider whether there is a possible risk given the residual risk that cannot be excluded Infection transmission currently orchestral and ensemble samples may be better avoided should. In addition, the common practice time should be kept to a minimum. People from the age of 70 years and with severe previous illnesses are excluded from the ensemble play discouraged. Conducting orchestral and choir rehearsals without special hygiene concepts can are not currently recommended.

Last but not least, there are recommendations for specific ones for the resumption of cultural activities To develop protection concepts for the public (see DOV proposals)<u>1</u>. Open air concerts can when following the clearance and installation rules and taking the wind direction into account largely considered safe.

## German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

## 6. Singing

Analogous to speaking, the smallest droplets are released when singing, which may occur can lead to a droplet infection. Since aerosol release occurs when speaking, which with greater volume, with sibilants among other factors increasing, it can be assumed that this for the singing also applies 35,36,37.

It is also important to sing between droplets with a size of  $> 5 \ \mu m$ , for example when coughing, Sneezing and wet pronunciation arise, and those with a size of  $<5 \ \mu m$ , for example in the Differentiate between exhalation and aerosol. it is supposed that different types of tuning as well as different voice intensities at different The size and density of the droplets lead and the amount of aerosol increases with the volume t 37.

The larger droplets have been shown to be infectious, including the infectivity of the aerosol Studies in humans have been scientifically proven 38. In addition, in studies 29.6 shown that the virus was still detectable in the air after 3 or 16 hours. So could Aerosols may pose a risk of infection in closed rooms with poor ventilation represent <u>n sr</u>. Further investigations are urgently needed.

It protects against infection from larger droplets that fall to the ground after 1.5 to 2 m Compliance with an appropriate distance rule, but not before a potential infection by Aerosols. An investigation showed that professional singers too no air movement in loud singing at a distance of about 0.5 meters detectable ware <u>n 28</u>. Accordingly, compliance with the general rule of distance is sufficient for protection even when singing from a droplet infection, for safe protection against a potential virus transmission in Aerosols are also recommended as additional protective measures. The following recommendations for Individual singing lessons and choral singing are discussed:

Individual lessons:

Individual singing lessons are regular with observance of the distance and hygiene rules thorough ventilation of the premises, which should have a large surface area as possible, denkba  $\underline{r}_{.30, 37}$ . The use of plexiglass walls between the teacher and the student to avoid Droplet infection can also be useful.

Choir / ensemble:

Singing in a choir / ensemble will differ in the opinions available so far

10/17

Making music during the SARS-CoV-2 pandemic Recommendations of the German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Medicin...

rated. Both the difficult to keep distance requirement, the room size and the ventilation as well as the total duration of a choir rehearsal and the rapid moistening of an MNS Risk factors for infection with SARS-CoV-2 during choral singing are becoming critical rated 37.

Other authors consider a choir rehearsal possible, provided that there is at least a distance of 1.5 m adhered to, the choir members stand in a staggered manner with the corresponding room size

11/17

Page 12

## German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

great ceiling height is ensured and proper ventilation in the rehearsal rooms is ensured (Suction of the room air upwards through the ceiling)  $\underline{n}$ . Also in another opinion under specific conditions (distance of 2 m, sufficient room size, Ventilation situation, number of people according to current regulations) a choir rehearsal for possible hold  $\underline{n}$  and  $\underline{n}$ 

However, infection through the aerosol that is distributed in the room air cannot be ruled out can be and protective measures such as spacing may be ineffective and as the likelihood of infection increases with increasing group size, the Common (choir) singing in closed rooms is currently rather discouraged.

## 7. Disinfection measures on the instrument

The United States Environmental gives recommendations on suitable disinfection measures Protection Agency <sup>39</sup>, World Piano News <sup>40</sup> and the NFHS, NAfME, NAMM Foundation <sup>41</sup>. Come here especially alcoholic disinfectants used, with a tolerance of the Disinfectant on the instrument surface should be tested in advance. The Cleaning the keyboards of keyboard instruments with alcohol-based disinfectants discussed controversially. The long-term effects of alcohol on the key surfaces as well the glue that fixes the surface of the white keys has not yet been examined. Therefore It is sometimes recommended to use tensides (commercially available detergents) to clean the keyboards use <sup>42</sup>. When sharing pianos it must be taken into account that the Lateral key surfaces made of unpainted wood cannot be reliably cleaned can. In these cases, special care must therefore be taken to ensure that the player ends it during the Avoid practicing or teaching phase by facing your face with your own hands grasp.

The sharing of wind instruments is also with careful cleaning Cleaning solutions containing alcohol or soap are not advisable according to the current state of knowledge. Unless otherwise possible, the cleaning should be done by the specialist teacher at a time Repeat the distance again and the instrument only after a time delay of passed on to the next student for at least 72 hours. If not excluded that moisture has remained in the instrument, it should not be passed on.

## 8. Final opinion

Making music during the SARS-CoV-2 pandemic Recommendations of the German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Medicin...

The information status on SARS-Cov-2 and Covid-19 is constantly changing. The currently known The data situation is sometimes interpreted and discussed differently. The ones mentioned here Recommendations are based on the current state of scientific knowledge and may apply to new ones Insights lose their validity. We strive for timely updates.

### Page 13

# German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

## 9. Further links

### Orchestra / stages:

Practical suggestions fr	om the DOV for resuming p	lay during the Corona					
pandemic	(Working group	health	and	Prophylaxis)			
https://www.dov.org/oe	ffständig_mteilungen/praxis	nahe-vorschlaege-der-dov	-zur-				
resumption-of-the-play-	-operation-position on the pl	lay-operation of the orches	stras				
during the Covid-19 pandemic							
0		a 1110 1 1 mm					
Opinion on the operatio	n of the orchestras during th	ne Covid-19 pandemic (Wi	illich, SN et al,				
Charite - University Me	dicine Berlin)	1/ / 01/					
https://epidemiologie.cl	harite.de/fileadmin/user_uplo	oad/microsites/m_cc01/ep	idemiologie/downloa				
ds / Statement_Spielbet	rieb_Orchester.pdf						
Industry specific guide	lines for action SAPS CoV	2 accumational sofaty stan	dard recommondations	for the			
Stages and studies bron	ah for the rehearsal area of	the association of					
VDC metagaional again	Stages and studios branch, for the rehearsal area of the association of						
https://www.wha.da/DE	72 Decovertion and Arbeit	abiltan/2 Altruallas und	Saminana/6 Altruallas	/			
Coronavirus / Industry	info I ab protection standar	d / BuufenuStudios Probe	nbetrieb ndf? blob				
blicationFile $& y = 6$	lino_Lao protection standard	a / Buulenustualos_Flobe		– pu			
$\frac{1}{2} = 0$							
SARS-CoV-2 occupation	onal safety standard of the Fe	ederal Ministry of Labor a	nd Social Affairs				
https://www.bmas.de/SharedDocs/Downloads/DE/PDF-Schwerpunkte/sars-cov-2-							
occupational safety standard.html							
Voice / singing:							
Assessment of the risk	of infection with SARS-CoV	/-2 viruses while singing (	Mürbe et al., Charité -				
University Medicine Be	erlin)						
https://audiology-							
phoniatrie.charite.de/fil	eadmin/user_upload/microsi	ites/m_cc16/audiologie/Al	llgemein/Singen_und_				
SARS-CoV-2_ProfM	% C3% BCrbe_et_al04052	2020.pdf					
Choir singing and singi	ng lessons in Corona times.	(Hess M, German Vocal C	Clinic Hamburg)				
https://stimmklinik.de/v	vp-content/uploads/2020/04	/Chor-Singen-und-Gesang	sunterricht-in-Zeiten-				

by-Corona 21.4.2020.pdf

### **Conservatoires:**

Risk assessment of a coronavirus infection in the field of music. (Spahn et al, 2020. FIM, University Hospital and University of Music Freiburg) https://www.mh-freiburg.de/hochschule/covid-19-corona/ riskeinschaetze/

13/17

### Page 14

# German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

### **Music schools:**

Guide to resuming face-to-face teaching at the music schools in Carinthia https://musikschule.ktn.gv.at/

#### **Miscellaneous:**

Making music during the pandemic - what does science advise? (Kähler et al, Institute for Fluid mechanics and aerodynamics, University of the Federal Armed Forces Munich) https://www.unibw.de/lrt7/musiken-waehrend-der-pandemie

#### thanksgiving

For the comprehensive suggestions and valuable discussions in the preparation of this We would like to thank the following colleagues for their recommendations: Prof. Dr. med. Eckart Altenmüller, Prof. Dr. rer. nat. Marc Bangert, Prof. Dr. med. Jochen Blum, Hanna Keßeler, Prof. Dr. med. Maria Schuppert.

## 14/17

Page 15

# German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

## 10. Literature

1 https://www.rki.de/DE/Content/InfAZ/N/Neuartiges_Coronavirus/Steckbrief.html#doc13776792bodyText1 (last access 13.05.2020)					
2 https://www.rki.de/DE/Content/InfAZ/N/Neuartiges_Coronavirus/Steckbrief.html#doc13776792bodyText8 (last access 13.05.2020)					
<sup>3</sup> Cascella M, Rajnik M, Cuomo A, Cuomo A, Dulebohn SC, et al (2020). Features, evaluation and treatment Corona virus (COVID-19). StatPearls. Treasure Iceland: Stat https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK554776/ (last accessed 13.05.2020)	Pearls	Publishing			
4 Li Y, Qian H, Hang J, Chen X, Hong L, et al. (2020). Aerosol transmission of SARS-CoV-2. Evidence for prol aerosol transmission of SARS-CoV-2 in a poorly vent https://www.medrxiv.org/content/10.1101/2020.04.16.20067728v1	bable ilated	restaurant:			
s Setti L, Passarini F., de Gennaro G., Barbieri P., Perrone M., et al (2020). Airborne Transmission Route of COVID-19: Why 2 Meters / 6 Feet of Inter-Personal Distance Could Not Be Enough. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 17, 2932. https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph17082932					
6 Fears AC, Klimstra WB, Duprex P, Hartman A, Weaver SC, et al. (2020). Comparative dynamic aerosol efficiencies of three emergent coronaviruses and the unusual persistence of SARS-CoV-2 in aerosol suspensions. MedRxiv, 2020.04.13.20063784. https://doi.org/10.1101/2020.04.13.20063784					
2 https://www.rki.de/DE/Content/InfAZ/N/Neuartiges_Coronavirus/Fallzahlen.html ( last accessed 13.05.2020)					
shttps://www.who.int/emergencies/diseases/novel-coronavirus-2019/situation-reports 05/13/2020)	(last	access			
<sup>9</sup> Wu Z, McGoogan JM (2020). Characteristics of and Important Lessons From the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) Outbreak in China: Summary of a Report of 72 314 Cases From the Chinese Center for Disease Control and prevention. JAMA. 2020; 323 (13): 1239-1242. doi: 10.1001 / jama.2020.2648					
<sup>10</sup> Zhang Y, Feng Z, Li Q, Wu Z, Dong X, et al. (2020). The Epidemiological Characteristics of an Outbreak of 2 Novel Coronavirus Diseases (COVID-19) —China, 2020. China CDC Weekly. Chinese Center for Disease Con and prevention. 2 (8): 113-122.	2019 trol				
11 Vardavas CI; Nikitara K (2020). COVID-19 and smoking: A systematic review of the evidence. Tobacco Indu Diseases. 18 (March). doi: 10.18332 / tid / 119324.	ced				
12 Li YC, Bai WZ, Hashikawa T (2020). The neuroinvasive potential of SARS-CoV2 may play a role in the respiratory failure of COVID-19 patients. Journal of Medical Virology. https://doi.org/10.1002/jmv.25728					
13 https://www.esanum.de/today/posts/covid-19-auch-ein-neurologisches- disease picture 05/13/2020)	(last	access			
14 Wang D, Hu B, Hu C, Zhu F, Liu X, et al (2020). Clinical Characteristics of 138 Hospitalized Patients With 24 Novel Coronavirus-Infected Pneumonia in Wuhan, China. Jama.	)19				
15 https://www.rki.de/DE/Content/InfAZ/N/Neuartiges_Coronavirus/nCoV.html (last access 13.05.2020)					

Making music during the SARS-CoV-2 pandemic Recommendations of the German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Medicin...

16 https://www.rki.de/DE/Content/InfAZ/N/Neuartiges\_Coronavirus/Empfohlene\_Schutzma%C3%9Fnahm.ht ml (last access 13.05.2020)

17 https://www.aerztekammer-bw.de/news/2020/2020-01/coronavirus/index.html (last access on May 13, 2020)

18 https://www.rki.de/DE/Content/InfAZ/N/Neuartiges\_Coronavirus/Hygiene.html (last access 13.05.2020)

19 https://www.bfarm.de/SharedDocs/Risikoinformationen/Medizinprodukte/DE/schutzmasken.html (last Access 13.05.2020)

20 https://www.infektionsschutz.de/haendewaschen/ (last access 13.05.2020)

15/17

Pandemic

#### Page 16

## German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

21 https://www.rki.de/DE/Content/InfAZ/N/Neuartiges\_Coronavirus/Hygiene.html (last accessed 13.05.2020)

22 https://hub.jhu.edu/2020/03/13/what-is-social-distancing/ (last access 13.05.2020)

2s https://www.rki.de/DE/Content/InfAZ/N/Neuartiges\_Coronavirus/Hygienemassnahmen\_Einsatzkraefte.pdf?\_ \_blob = publicationFile (last access 13.05.2020)

24 https://www.nejm.org/doi/full/10.1056/NEJMc2004973 (last accessed May 13, 2020)

25 https://www.baulinks.de/webplugin/2020/0442.php4 (last access 13.05.2020)

26 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=IZwWt4g od8 (last access on May 13, 2020)

27 https://www.br.de/mediathek/video/aerosole-studie-ist-gemeinsames-musmachen-in-corona-zeitendangerous-av: 5eb182bc4acf0f00149d0d7c (last access 13.05.2020)

28 Kähler CJ, Hain R (2020). Making music during the pandemic - what does science advise? https://www.unibw.de/lrt7/musiken-waehrend-der-pandemie (last access 13.05.2020)

29 van Doremalen N, Bushmaker T, Morris DH, Holbrook MG, Gamble A, et al. (2020). Aerosol and surface Stability of SARS-CoV-2 as Compared with SARS-CoV-1. New England Journal of Medicine, 382 (16), 1564-1567. https://doi.org/10.1056/NEJMc2004973

30 Spahn C, Richter B (2020). Risk assessment of a coronavirus infection in the field of music.

https://www.mh-freiburg.de/hochschule/covid-19-corona/ riskeinschaetze (last access on May 13th, 2020)

<sup>31</sup> DOV Working Group on Health and Prophylaxis (2020). Practical suggestions of the resumption of the Game operations during the Corona pandemic. https://www.dov.org/oeffektiven\_mteilungen/praxisnahe-Suggestions-the-dov-for-resuming-the-game-operation-during an opinion on the game-operation of the Orchestra during the Covid-19 pandemic (last access 13.05.2020)

22 Willich SN, Berghöfer A, Wiese-Posselt MK, Gastmeier P (2020). Opinion on the operation of the					
orchestra	while	the	Covid-19		
https://epidemiologie.charite.de	/fileadmin/user upload/micro	sites/m cc01/epidem	iologie/downloads/Stellun		

gnahme Spielbetrieb Orchester.pdf (accessed 13.05.2020)

<sup>33</sup> VBG (2020). Industry-specific guidelines for action SARS-CoV-2 occupational safety standard recommendations for the Stages and studios branch, for the rehearsal area of the association of professional associations https://www.vbg.de/DE/3\_Praevention\_und\_Arbeitshilfen/3\_Aktuelles\_und\_Seminare/6\_Aktuelles/Coronavir us / Industry information\_Arbeitsschutzstandard / BuehnuStudios\_Probenbetrieb.pdf? \_\_\_\_\_ blob = publicationFile & v = 6 (last access 13.05.2020)

34 Federal Ministry For job and Social issues (2020). SARS-CoV-2 occupational safety standard. https://www.bmas.de/SharedDocs/Downloads/DE/PDF-Schwerpunkte/sars-cov-2-arbeitsschutzstandard.html (last access 13.05.2020)

35 Asadi S, Wexler AS, Cappa CD, Barreda S, Bouvier NM, Ristenpart WD (2020). Effect of voicing and articulation manner on aerosol particle emission during human speech. PLoS ONE 15 (1): e0227699. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal. pone.0227699 5/27/2020 Making music during the SARS-CoV-2 pandemic Recommendations of the German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Medicin... 36 Asadi S, Wexler AS, Cappa CD, Barreda S, Bouvier NM, Ristenpart WD (2019). Aerosol emission and super mission during human speech increase with voice loudness. Scientific reports. 2019; 9. 37 Mürbe D, Bischoff P, Fleischer M, Gastmeier P. (2020) Assessment of the risk of infection with SARS-CoV-2-Viruses at the To sing. https://audiologyphoniatrie.charite.de/fileadmin/user\_upload/microsites/m\_cc16/audiologie/Allgemein/Singen\_und\_SARS-CoV-2\_Prof.\_M% C3% BCrbe\_et\_al.\_04052020.pdf 38 Li Y, Qian H., Hang J., Chen X., Hong L., et al (2020). Aerosol transmission of SARS-CoV-2. Evidence for probable aerosol transmission of SARS-CoV-2 in a poorly ventilated restaurant: https://www.medrxiv.org/content/10.1101/2020.04.16.20067728v1 16/17

Page 17

# German Society for Music Physiology and Musicians' Association

 39 https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
 (last
 access

 05/13/2020)
 40 https://www.worldpianonews.com/general/explainers/covid-19-and-consumer-piano-care/ (last access
 05/13/2020)

 40 https://www.morldpianonews.com/general/explainers/covid-19-and-consumer-piano-care/ (last access
 05/13/2020)

 41 https://www.nfhs.org/articles/covid-19-instrument-cleaning-guidelines/ (last accessed 13.05.2020)
 42 https://www.facebook.com/watch?v=587313098565729 (last access 13.05.2020)

17/17